
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY July 30, 2024
Meeting Start Time:  9:30 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
9:15 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS

 

CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Agricultural Covenant for Tract 1, Unnumbered COS, Located in Section 30, Township 2
South, Range 25 East
 

 

2. COMMISSIONERS  

Board Openings - Updated List 
 

 

3. FINANCE  

a. Elections Request to Recruit Deputy Election Administrator  
b. MetraPark Request to Expend 21 Picnic Tables  
c. Annual MOU with MT Wool Growers Association  
d. Bonds for Lost Warrant  
e. Metra Contract with VIP Services for MontanaFair Janitorial Services  
f. Request to Expend Metra Electric Pallet Jack  
g. Grant #NR230325XXXXC003 EWP Project 5044 Flood Recovery Measures - Final Federal

Financial Report
 

 

4. PLANNING DEPARTMENT  

Final Resolution 24-122 for Zone Change 724 - 1745 Mary Street
 

 



           
5. HUMAN RESOURCES  

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - District Court - 1 Appointment; Youth Services Center -
1 Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Appointment, 2 Salary & Other; Road & Bridge - 1
Termination; 

 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. AUDITOR  

Payroll Audit July 1 to July 15, 2024
 

 

2. COMMISSIONERS  

Board Minutes - July 2024 DUI Task Force Minutes
 

 

3. FINANCE  

Metra Contract with KG Construction for Expo & Pavilion Roofing Repairs
 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES  

July 1 - July 15 Payroll Audit  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Red Lodge COS
Submitted For:  Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder 
Submitted By: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder

TOPIC:
Agricultural Covenant for Tract 1, Unnumbered COS, Located in Section 30, Township 2 South, Range
25 East
 

BACKGROUND:
Reviewed.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
RL Ag Cov 









   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Board Openings
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Openings - Updated List 
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Post 

Attachments
Board Openings 



 

July 30, 2024 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 3 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 4 2 year 1 partial to 12/31/24 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live AND own property within 

the boundaries of the district. To find which planning district you live in, please contact the City/County 

Planning Division at 247-8676. 

 

LAUREL URBAN FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 

                     1 partial to 6/30/25 

                     1 partial to 6/30/26 

                     1 full to 6/30/27 

BROADVIEW CEMETERY 3 year                      1 partial to 6/30/26 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own property within the 

boundaries of the district. 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 2 year                    1 full to 12/31/25 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must have professional expertise in history, planning, 

archaeology, architecture, or historic preservation-related disciplines. 

 

LOCKWOOD PEDESTRIAN SAFETY DISTRICT ADV. 3 year 
             2 full to 12/31/26 

                  1 partial to 12/31/24 
                  1 partial to 12/31/25 

YOUTH SERVICES CENTER 2 year               3 full to 12/31/25 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, August 29, 2024 

 

July 9, 2024 

AREA II AGENCY ON AGING  1 year                   1 full to 6/30/25 

 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #7  3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

WORDEN FIRE DISTRICT #4 3 year             2 full to 5/4/27 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #5 3 year             1 full to 5/4/27 

LOCKWOOD URBAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 4 year             2 full to 5/2/28 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, August 8, 2024 

 

FUEGO FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 1 partial to 12/31/25 

BLUE CREEK FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 2 full to 5/8/27 

 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Elections Request to Recruit Deputy Election Admin
Submitted For:  Jennifer Jones, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jennifer Jones, Finance Director

TOPIC:
Elections Request to Recruit Deputy Election Administrator

BACKGROUND:
A request was submitted in the FY25 preliminary budget for an additional deputy election administrator. 
This request is to grant the ability to advertise and recruit before the Final FY25 budget is ratified in
September.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Election 



 
 
 
 
 

PO Box 35002 
Billings, MT 59107‐5002 

(406)256‐2742 
(406)254‐7940 (Fax) 

July 17, 2024 
Board of County Commissioners 
Finance Office 
Yellowstone County 
 
Dear BOCC, 
 
During the preliminary budget cycle, I made a request for one F.T.E. to fill a new deputy election 
administrator position. It is important that person is on board prior to the federal general election, 
working alongside Mr. Gillen before his contract expires.  Therefore, I request formal approval of 
the request and the ability of Elections to recruit for the position prior to the final budget ratification 
on September 3, 2024.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
/s/ K.V. Aldrich 
 
K.V. Aldrich 
 
 
 
 
 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: MetraPark Request to Expend - 21 Composite Picnic Tables
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
MetraPark Request to Expend 21 Picnic Tables

BACKGROUND:
MetraPark is requesting Commissioner's approval for the purchase of 21 composite material picnic
tables.  Composite picnic tables are designed to last 50 years and resist moisture, pests, and UV rays,
ensuring a long lifespan without the need to frequent repairs or replacements.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra RTE Picnic Tables 



7/22/2024

Preliminayr - FY25 Budget





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. c.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Annual MOU with MT Wool Growers Association
Submitted For:  Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Juli Bjornebo

TOPIC:
Annual MOU with MT Wool Growers Association

BACKGROUND:
Annual MOU with MT Wool Growers Assoc.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
MOU 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. d.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Bonds for Lost Warrant
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
Bonds for Lost Warrant

BACKGROUND:
Bonds for Lost Warrant on lost checks.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve reissue once 30 days have passed from original issuance date.

Attachments
Bonds for Lost Warrant 



BOND FOR LOST WARRANT 


On July 8,2024 Yellowstone County issued a warrant numbered 865145 to 
Sharon M Lave (Principal) in the amount of $97.89 . The warrant was drawn 
in payment of Payroll 6/16-6/30/24 . Principal now attests that the warrant 
has been lost or destroyed, and it has undertaken a diligent search but has been unable to recover 
the warrant. Moreover, Principal has not received payment on the claim. Therefore, Principal has 
requested that Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant in the same sum of $97.89 to 
replace the lost or destroyed warrant. 

WHEREFORE, Principal agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone County and its officers 
from all loss, costs, or damages incurred as a result of issuing the duplicate warrant, should 
Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant, and agrees to release any and all claims that principal 
may have against Yellowstone County now or in the future as related to payment of the above stated 
claim. Principal also agrees to pay to any person entitled to receive payment under the original 
warrant, as the lawful holder of the original warrant, all monies received upon the duplicate warrant. 

Further, Principal agrees to bind itself, its heirs, assigns, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns, jointly and severally, for twice the amount of the original warrant as required by M.C.A. 7-7
2104 (2), which is $ 195.78 and may be enforced in the event the Principal cashes both the 
original warrant and the replacement warrant. In addition, Principal agrees to pay reasonable 
attorney's fees, and to cover all losses, damages, and other costs incurred by Yellowstone County in 
enfo~ci~ts rights under this bond . 

-s-b)~ c;{~
Principal Signature 

~~ ~D ~cue-e.-- U 
Mailing Address for replacement check 

City, State ZIP 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on o..,.j;fho~i by f}~f\ L~. 
I' a:;,t Name of signer/pnncipal(s) 

(NOTARIAL SEAL/STAMP) ~ 
BENJAMIN THIELE 


Notary Public for the 

State of Montana 


Residing at BILLINGS, MT 

My Commission Expires 


December 1, 2027 


APPROVED: 


Chair, Board of County Commissioners 

[Complete the following if not part of stamp] 

Notary public fO~/the St te of MC¥1Mi\0. 

County of ~ 'II Yf ~ 

Resid ing at ..........LC.-~""-----:-:=--"',........,..-I-:::--:=--_ 
My Commission e ires .....:/~~'-f-..>!....!<:-=--L-

Date 

Replaced with warrant #_____(completed by County) 4/27/23 



BOND FOR LOST WARRANT 


On July 8,2024 Yellowstone County issued a warrant numbered 865163 to 
Veronica Lave (Principal) in the amount of $55.93 . The warrant was drawn 
in payment of Payroll 6/16-30/24 . Principal now attests that the warrant 
has been lost or destroyed, and it has undertaken a diligent search but has been unable to recover 
the warrant. Moreover, Principal has not received payment on the claim. Therefore, Principal has 
requested that Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant in the same sum of $55.93 to 
replace the lost or destroyed warrant. 

WHEREFORE, Principal agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone County and its officers 
from all loss, costs, or damages incurred as a result of issuing the duplicate warrant, should 
Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant, and agrees to release any and all claims that principal 
may have against Yellowstone County now or in the future as related to payment of the above stated 
claim. Principal also agrees to pay to any person entitled to receive payment under the original 
warrant, as the lawful holder of the original warrant, all monies received upon the duplicate warrant. 

Further, Principal agrees to bind itself, its heirs, assigns, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns, jointly and severally, for twice the amount of the original warrant as required by M.C.A. 7-7
2104 (2), which is $ 111.86 and may be enforced in the event the Principal cashes both the 
original warrant and the replacement warrant. In addition, Principal agrees to pay reasonable 
attorney's fees, and to cover all losses, damages, and other costs incurred by Yellowstone County in 
enforcing its rights under this bond. 

Principal Signature 

Lf2cf[) SP ~~, i(d 
Mailing Address for replacement eck 

~Il\ I~ b f\t+. 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on (PIli'? /?O ;;"'1 by VUOV"/;co.... k~ 

~ 7 . Print Name of signer/principal(s) 

(NOTARIAL SEAUSTAMP) (-~& 
BENJAMIN THIELE 


Notary Public for the 

State of Montana 


Residing at BILLINGS, MT 

My Commission Expires 


December 1, 2027 


APPROVED: 


Chair, Board of County Commissioners Date 

Replaced with warrant #_____(completed by County) 4/27/23 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. e.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Metra Contract with VIP Services MontanaFair Janitorial Services
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra Contract with VIP Services for MontanaFair Janitorial Services 

BACKGROUND:
Metra contract with VIP Services to MontanaFair mechanized sweeping,  pre-Fair cleaning with janitorial
services from August 9th through August 17th and asphalt repair after MontanaFair.  The cost of services
was anticipated and included in the preliminary FY25 budget.  The cost for all services is $66,473.00

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra Contract VIP Services MontanaFair 2024 























   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. f.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Request to Expend Metra Electric Pallet Jack
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Request to Expend Metra Electric Pallet Jack

BACKGROUND:
Metra is requesting Commioner's approval for the purchase of an electric pallet jack.  The purchase is
anticipated and added to the pending approval on the FY25 budget (5811.000.553.460442.940 -
Concessions CIP) .  The cost of the electric pallet jack is $5,995.00 plus shipping costs.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra RTE Pallet Jack 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. g.        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: NRCS Grant - EWP Project 5044 Final Federal Financial Report
Submitted For:  Lisa Sticka, Comptroller  Submitted By: Lisa Sticka, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Grant #NR230325XXXXC003 EWP Project 5044 Flood Recovery Measures - Final Federal Financial
Report
 

BACKGROUND:
Grant for flood recovery measures due to MT Flooding June 2022

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Final Federal Financial Report - EWP Project 5044 



1. Federal Agency and Organizational Element to Which Report is Submitted

4a. DUNS Number

Recipient Organization Name:

Street1:

Street2:

City:

State:

ZIP / Postal Code:Country:

Quarterly

Federal Financial Report 
(Follow form Instructions)

County:

Province:

07/30/2024

NR230325XXXXC003

071404941

Yellowstone County

PO Box 35003

Billings Yellowstone

MT: Montana

USA: UNITED STATES 59107-5003

81-6001449

04/05/2023 07/13/2024

Natural Resources Conservation Service 
10 East Babcock Street, Room 443 
Bozeman, MT 59715

2. Federal Grant or Other Identifying Number Assigned by Federal 
Agency (To report multiple grants, use FFR Attachment)

3. Recipient Organization (Name and complete address including Zip code)

4b. EIN 5. Recipient Account Number or Identifying Number 
(To report multiple grants, use FFR Attachment)

6. Report Type

Semi-Annual

Annual

Final

7. Basis of Accounting

Accrual

Cash

8. Project/Grant Period

To:From:

9. Reporting Period End Date 

a. Cash Receipts

c. Cash on Hand (line a minus b)

b. Cash Disbursements

731,982.50

731,982.50

0.00

10. Transactions Cumulative

(Use lines a-c for single or multiple grant reporting)

Federal Cash (To report multiple grants, also use FFR attachment):

(Use lines d-o for single grant reporting)

Federal Expenditures and Unobligated Balance:

d. Total Federal funds authorized

e. Federal share of expenditures

738,733.00

731,982.50

f. Federal share of unliquidated obligations 0.00

g. Total Federal share (sum of lines e and f)

h. Unobligated balance of Federal Funds (line d minus g)

Recipient Share:

i. Total recipient share required

k. Remaining recipient share to be provided (line i minus j)

j. Recipient share of expenditures

220,988.00

218,737.50

2,250.50

Program Income:

l. Total Federal program income earned

o. Unexpended program income (line l minus line m or line n)

m. Program Income expended in accordance with the deduction alternative

0.00

0.00

0.00

n. Program Income expended in accordance with the addition alternative 0.00

OMB Number: 4040-0014 
Expiration Date: 02/28/2022

731,982.50

6,750.50



b. Signature of Authorized Certifying Official

e. Date Report Submitted 
 

First Name: Middle Name:

Last Name: Suffix:

Title:

c. Telephone (Area code, number and extension)

d. Email Address

Prefix: John

Ostlund

Chairman, Yellowstone County BOCC

406-256-2701

 bocc@yellowstonecountymt.gov 07/30/2024

13. Certification: By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete, and accurate, and the 
expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I 
am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or 
administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 
and 3801-3812).

11. Indirect Expense

a. Type d. Base f. Federal Share b. Rate c. Period From Period To
e. Amount 
Charged

g. Totals:

12. Remarks: Attach any explanations deemed necessary or information required by Federal sponsoring agency in compliance with governing legislation:

View AttachmentDelete AttachmentAdd Attachment

a. Name and Title of Authorized Certifying Official

14. Agency use only:

Standard Form 425



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Final Resolution for Zone Change 724
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Final Resolution 24-122 for Zone Change 724 - 1745 Mary Street
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Final Resolution for Zone Change 724 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - District Court - 1 Appointment; Youth Services Center - 1
Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Appointment, 2 Salary & Other; Road & Bridge - 1 Termination; 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Payroll Audit
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Payroll Audit July 1 to July 15, 2024
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Payroll Audit 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - July 2024 DUI Task Force Minutes
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
Board Minutes 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Metra Contract KG Construction for Expo & Pavilion Roofing Repairs
Submitted For:  James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra Contract with KG Construction for Expo & Pavilion Roofing Repairs
 

BACKGROUND:
The Expo & Pavilion buildings have leaks in the metal roofing on the buildings.  Contractor will remove
sealant from all Roof Top HVAC units and re-seal roof jacks and replace an estimated 15 jacks beyond
repair, patch seamed gutter and downspouts.  Clean and seal 14 exhaust flues on Expo & Pavilion, clean
and seal roof vents, and exhaust vents, and clean and seal 4 kitchen hood vents. Cost of the repairs is
$8.980.00 and can be completed before MontanaFair.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the contract and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Metra Contract KG Const. Roofing Repair 



























   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 07/30/2024  
Title: Response to Audit Findings - July 22, 2024
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:
July 1 - July 15 Payroll Audit

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na

Attachments
Audit Findings 






	Agenda
	AI 13703 Red Lodge COS
	       ATT_RL Ag Cov
	AI 13705 Board Openings
	       ATT_Board Openings
	AI 13688 Elections Request to Recruit Deputy Election Admin
	       ATT_Election
	AI 13690 MetraPark Request to Expend - 21 Composite Picnic Tables
	       ATT_Metra RTE Picnic Tables
	AI 13691 Annual MOU with MT Wool Growers Association
	       ATT_MOU
	AI 13696 Bonds for Lost Warrant
	       ATT_Bonds for Lost Warrant
	AI 13699 Metra Contract with VIP Services MontanaFair Janitorial Services
	       ATT_Metra Contract VIP Services MontanaFair 2024
	AI 13700 Request to Expend Metra Electric Pallet Jack
	       ATT_Metra RTE Pallet Jack
	AI 13707 NRCS Grant - EWP Project 5044 Final Federal Financial Report
	       ATT_Final Federal Financial Report - EWP Project 5044
	AI 13711 Final Resolution for Zone Change 724
	       ATT_Final Resolution for Zone Change 724
	AI 13710 PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	AI 13709 Payroll Audit
	       ATT_Payroll Audit
	AI 13695 Board Minutes
	       ATT_Board Minutes
	AI 13701 Metra Contract KG Construction for Expo & Pavilion Roofing Repairs
	       ATT_Metra Contract KG Const. Roofing Repair
	AI 13694 Response to Audit Findings - July 22, 2024
	       ATT_Audit Findings

